

(A public company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 and validly existing under the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended))

CIN: U65921MH1995PLC212675

Registered & Corporate Office: Ground Floor, Axis House, Wadia International Centre, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai – 400025

Tel: 022-6226 0096 Fax: 022-4325 3085

Contact Person: Mr. Amith Iyer, CFO & Treasury Head, Email ID: amith.iyer@axisfinance.in Compliance Officer- Rajneesh Kumar, Company Secretary, Email IID: Rajneesh.kumar@axisfinance.in

PRIVATE PLACEMENT OFFER LETTER IN FORM PAS-4

(Pursuant to Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 (The "Act") And Rule 14 (1) of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment Of Securities) Rules, 2014))

RE-ISSUE BY WAY OF PRIVATE PLACEMENT (THE "ISSUE") BY AXIS FINANCE LIMITED (THE "COMPANY") OF SECURED, REDEEMABLE, NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES BEARING A FACE VALUE OF INR 10,00,000 (INDIAN RUPEES TEN LAKH) EACH, AGGREGATING UPTO INR 200,00,00000 (INDIAN RUPEES TWO HUNDRED CRORES) (THE "DEBENTURES").

This private placement offer letter (the "Offer Letter") is issued under the Shelf Disclosure Document dated November 27, 2017, issued in terms of Regulation 5(2)(b), Regulation 19, Regulation 21 and Regulation 21A of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 as amended from time to time up to an amount not exceeding Rs. 500,00,00,000 (Rupees Five Hundred Crores Only) to be issued in one or more tranches from time to time.

This Offer Letter contains all relevant information and disclosures required for issuing of the Debentures in accordance with Sections 42 of the Act and Rule 14(1) of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, as amended ("PAS Rules") and also in terms of Regulation 5(2)(b), Regulation 19, Regulation 21 and Regulation 21A of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 as amended from time to time ("SEBI Regulations"). The Company shall file a copy of this Offer Letter with the jurisdictional Registrar of Companies ("ROC") within the stipulated time prescribed under the Act. Any application by a person to whom the Offer Letter has not been sent by the Company shall be rejected without assigning any reason. The Issue described under this Offer Letter has been authorised by the Company through resolutions passed by the shareholders of the Company on 13th July, 2017 and the board of directors ("Board") of the Company on 11th April, 2017 and the memorandum of association and articles of association of the Company (collectively, the "Constitutional Documents"). The Issue shall be subject to the provisions of the Act, the PAS Rules, other rules notified pursuant to the Act, the Constitutional Documents, the application form to be filled by the prospective eligible investors attached with the Offer Letter as Annexure H (the "Application Form"), and the terms and conditions of the Issue as may be incorporated in the debenture trust deed executed by the Company in relation to the Issue.

DISCLAIMERS

THIS OFFER LETTER IS NEITHER A PROSPECTUS NOR A STATEMENT IN LIEU OF PROSPECTUS AND SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED TO BE A PROSPECTUS OR A STATEMENT IN LIEU OF PROSPECTUS UNDER THE ACT. THE ISSUE IS BEING MADE STRICTLY ON A PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS. IT IS NOT INTENDED TO BE CIRCULATED TO ANY PERSONS OTHER THAN THE INVESTORS SPECIFICALLY APPROACHED WHO ARE ELIGIBLE TO APPLY FOR THIS PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF DEBENTURES, WHICH SHALL NOT EXCEED SUCH NUMBERS AS HAS BEEN PRESCRIBED UNDER SECTION 42 OF THE ACT READ WITH RULE 14(2)(B) OF THE PAS RULES. THIS OFFER LETTER IS ONLY ISSUED TO THE ADDRESSEE. HOWEVER, MULTIPLE COPIES GIVEN TO THE SAME ENTITY SHALL CONSTITUTE A SINGLE OFFER LETTER AND SHALL BE TREATED AS SUCH. IT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AND SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE AN OFFER OR AN INVITATION TO SUBSCRIBE TO THE DEBENTURES ISSUED TO THE PUBLIC IN GENERAL.

GENERAL RISKS

As the Issue is being made on private placement basis, this Offer Letter has not been submitted, cleared or approved by SEBI. The Debentures have not been recommended or approved by SEBI nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this Offer Letter. For taking an investment decision, potential investors must rely on their own examination of the Company, the Issue and this Offer Letter including the risks involved. Potential investors are advised to take an informed decision and consider with their advisers, of the suitability of the Debentures in the light of their particular financial circumstances, investment objectives and risk profile, and of all information set forth in this Offer Letter, including the section entitled "Risk Factors", before investing.

COMPANY'S ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILITY

The Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for, and confirms that this Offer Letter (including the documents incorporated by reference herein, if any) contains all information with regard to the Company and the Issue, that the information contained in this Offer Letter is true and correct in all material respects and is not misleading in any respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there are no other material facts, the omission of which makes this Offer Letter as a whole or any of such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading in any respect.

CREDIT RATING

The Debentures have been rated by CRISIL Ratings Limited as 'AAA'. The said rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Debentures and Investors should take their own decision. The rating may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning credit rating agency and each rating should be evaluated independently of any other rating. The ratings obtained are subject to revision at any point of time in the future. The rating agency has the right to suspend, withdraw the rating at any time on the basis of new information etc.

LISTING

The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the Wholesale Debt Market (WDM) segment of the BSE Limited ("BSE").

ISSUE SCHEDULE				
ISSUE OPENING DATE	ISSUE CLOSING DATE	PAY-IN DATE	DATE OF ALLOTMENT	
28th March, 2018	28th March ,2018	28th March ,2018	28th March ,2018	

REGISTRAR	DEBENTURE TRUSTEE	
LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED	CATALYST TRUSTEESHIP LIMITED	
Office: C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg,	Office: 83 - 87, 8th Floor, 'B' Wing, Mittal Tower,	
Vikhroli West, Mumbai 400 083	Nariman Point Mumbai – 400021	
Tel: +91 22 49186000	Tel: 22 4922 0555	
Fax: +91 22 49186060	Fax: 22 4922 0505	
Email: mumbai@linkintime.co.in	Email: deesha.trivedi@ctltrustee.com	
Website: www.linkintime.co.in	Website: www.catalysttrustee.com	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION	3
BRIEF SUMMARY OF THE BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE ISSUER AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES IF ANY	3
MANAGEMENT'S PERCEPTION OF RISK FACTORS	8
DETAILS OF DEFAULT	13
PARTICULARS OF THE OFFER	14
DISCLOSURES WITH REGARD TO INTEREST OF DIRECTORS, LITIGATION ETC	15
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY	17
ILLUSRATION OF CASH FLOWS FROM THE DEBENTURES	18
DECLARATION	19
ANNEXURE A TERMS AND CONDITONS OF THE OFFER	20
ANNEXURE B REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS	23
ANNEXURE C RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS	24
ANNEXURE D SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY DURING THE LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS	25
ANNEXURE E AUDITED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS	29
ANNEXURE F CERTIFIED COPYOF BOARD RESOLUTION	31
ANNEXURE G CERTIFIED COPY OF THE SHAREHOLDERS RESOLUTION	32
ANNEXURE H APPLICATION FORM	35

This Offer Letter shall be read in conjunction with the Debenture Trust Deed and the other Transaction Documents and it is agreed between the Debenture Trustee and the Company that in case of any inconsistency or conflict between this Offer Letter and the Debenture Trust Deed, the provisions of the Debenture Trust Deed shall prevail and override the provisions of this Offer Letter.

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

a.	Name of the Company	Axis Finance Limited
b.	Address of the Company	Registered Office: Axis House, Wadia International Centre, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai – 400025
		<u>Corporate Office:</u> Ground Floor, South Wing, Axis House, Wadia International Centre, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai – 400025
C.	Website and other contact details of the Company	Contact Person: Mr. Amith Iyer, CFO & Treasury Head Tel::+91-22-6226 0096 Fax:+91-22-4325 3085 Email ID: amith.iyer@axisfinance.in Compliance Officer: Mr. Rajneesh Kumar, Vice President and Company Secretary Tel:+91-22-6226 0117 Fax:+91-22-4325 3085 Email: rajneesh.kumar@axisfinance.in
		Website: www.axisfinance.co.in
d.	Date of incorporation of the company;	April 27, 1995
e.	Corporate Identification Number	U65921MH1995PLC212675

2. BRIEF SUMMARY OF THE BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE ISSUER AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES IF ANY

Business Overview

The Company was incorporated as M/s Kalpataru Hire Purchase & Leasing Private Limited on 27-04-1995. The name of Company was later changed to M/s Enam Finance Private Limited and thereafter to M/s Axis Finance Private Limited vide certificate of incorporation dated 24-June-2008 & 26-03-2013 respectively. The Company was later converted into Public company and to its present name vide a fresh Certificate of Incorporation issued on 10-05-2013. The Company is a systemically important non-deposit accepting non-banking financial company (NBFC-ND-SI) and is registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

With effect from 20th October 2012, Enam Securities Private Limited has merged into Axis Sales and Securities Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Axis Bank Limited). The name of the merged entity has since been changed to Axis Capital Limited. Further, giving legal effect to the scheme of demerger, the Board of Directors of the Enam Finance Private Limited ("EFPL") in their meeting held on October 20, 2012 has passed the resolution to permit

transfer of shares of EFPL from Axis Capital Limited to Axis Bank Limited. To reflect the change in ownership and control it is also proposed to change the name of the company from Enam Finance (Private) Limited to Axis Finance Limited (AFL). AFL is a wholly owned subsidiary of Axis Bank Limited.

As on March 31, 2017, the net-worth of the Company was Rs. 876.38 Crores.

Axis Finance Limited has no subsidiaries.

Parent Overview:

Axis Bank Limited is one of the first new generation private sector banks to have begun operations in 1994. The Bank was promoted in 1993, jointly by Specified Undertaking of Unit Trust of India (SUUTI) (then known as Unit Trust of India), Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC), General Insurance Corporation of India (GIC), National Insurance Company Limited, The New India Assurance Company Limited, The Oriental Insurance Company Limited and United India Insurance Company Limited. The shareholding of Unit Trust of India was subsequently transferred to SUUTI, an entity established in 2003. Today, the Bank is India's third largest private sector bank. It offers the entire spectrum of financial services to customer segments, covering Large and Mid-Corporates, MSME, Agriculture and Retail Businesses. With its 3,589 domestic branches (including extension counters) and 13,977 ATMs across the country as on 31st December 2017, the network of the Bank spreads across 1,946 cities and towns, enabling the Bank to reach out to a large cross-section of customers with an array of products and services. The Bank's overseas operations are spread over nine international offices with branches in Singapore, Hong Kong, Dubai, Colombo and Shanghai; representative offices located in Dhaka, Dubai, Abu Dhabi, along with an overseas subsidiary in London, UK. The international offices focus on corporate lending, trade finance, syndication and liability businesses. As on 31st March 2017, the Bank has nine unlisted subsidiary companies: Axis Asset Management Company Limited, Axis Mutual Fund Trustee Limited, Axis Bank UK Limited, Axis Capital Limited, Axis Finance Limited, Axis Private Equity Limited, Axis Trustee Services Limited, Axis Securities Limited, and A.Treds Limited

Product Profile:

Axis Finance Limited as a Non-Banking Finance Company is positioned to offer products in the Retail as well as Corporate Banking segments, some of the key product offerings are:

Corporate Lending	Retail Lending	Advisory & Arranging Services
Promoter Funding& Real Estate Funding	Margin Trading Funding	_
Loan against Marketable securities	IPO Funding	
Structured & Mezzanine Funding	ESOP Financing	Advisory and arranging services
Special Situations Funding	Loan against Shares(LAS), Loan Against MFs, Bonds & FDs & Loan against Property(LAP)	for Corporate Clients

A brief on the products is as below:

Corporate Financial Products

- Promoter Funding: by way of Loan against Shares (Listed/Unlisted) for facilitating various requirements of the Promoters of Large and Mid-Size Indian Corporates. AFL facilitates such financing requirements ranging from simple to complex loan structures with flexibility of short to long duration maturities
- **Structured & Mezzanine Products:** Structured products share characteristics of both equity and debt and include secured products such as term loans, convertible/non-convertible debentures.
- Special Situations Funding: Such as Acquisition Funding, PE Buyouts or Creeping Acquisitions, Family

- Settlements, Bridge Financing and Others.
- Real estate funding: Providing financing through variety of products including debt and structured debt, bridge or last mile funding, loans with no end-use restriction.

Retail Financial Products

- Margin Trade Funding: Individual can avail finance against listed securities (BSE & NSE) from Axis Finance Limited at predefined margin ranging from 25%-60% depending on scrip category.
- **IPO Funding:** Retail customers can avail finance by paying upfront margin of around 2- 20% of application in IPO & can get the benefit of applying for larger ticket size with minimum investment.
- **ESOP Funding:** Retail customers can avail finance to exercise ESOP options. Corporate level engagement for providing the facility to eligible employees.
- **Loan against Shares(LAS):** Retail customers can avail loan (Tenor 12-36 months) against approved shares from the approved list.
- Loan Against Mutual Funds, Bonds & Fixed Deposits: Retail customers can avail a loan against your mutual funds, bonds and fixed deposits while continuing to earn returns on them without liquidating them.
- Loan against Property (LAP): Retail customers can avail loan (Tenor –12-60 months) against residential property.

BRIEF PARTICULARS OF THE MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

The brief profile of the Board of Directors is as under:

Mr. V. Srinivasan is a qualified engineer from the College of Engineering, Anna University, Chennai who has also completed his PGDBM from the Indian Institute of Management, Calcutta in 1990. He began his career in the financial services industry with ICICI Ltd., in its Merchant Banking Division, in 1990. He was a part of the start-up team of ICICI Securities and Finance Co. Ltd (I-Sec), the joint venture between ICICI and J.P. Morgan and headed the Fixed Income business there. Since 1999, Shri V. Srinivasan was working with J.P. Morgan, India and in his last assignment he was the Managing Director and the Head of Markets. He was the CEO of J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, Mumbai Branch as well as Chairman, J.P. Morgan Securities (I) Pvt. Ltd. at the time he left J.P. Morgan. He has served on various RBI Committees such as the Technical Advisory Committee of RBI, Committee of Repos, STRIPS etc. He has also served as a Chairman of FIMMDA, the key self-regulatory body for bond and money markets and PDAI, the self-regulatory organization for Primary Dealers. Mr. V. Srinivasan, joined Axis Bank as the Executive Director - Corporate Banking in 2009 and was promoted as a Director on the Board of Axis Bank in October 2012. Currently is the Deputy Managing Director of Axis Bank and also serves as the Chairman of Axis Finance Ltd.

Mr. Bipin Kumar Saraf is a Rank Holder Chartered Accountant and Cost Accountant and holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce. He has more than 20 years of experience in the areas of Finance and Banking. Before joining Axis Bank Limited, Mr. Saraf was with IFCI Limited from 1995 to 2003. He commenced his career with IFCI Limited and was responsible for handling the portfolio of large and medium corporates belonging to various sectors including Steel, Power, Textile, Petrochemicals, etc. He joined the Capital Market Department of Axis Bank Limited in 2003 and was in-charge of the Corporate & Financial Advisory Portfolio in the Eastern Zone with the primary responsibility of undertaking project advisory & appraisal assignments, corporate restructuring and syndication of funds for various corporate clients. Subsequent to that he was responsible for the Structured Products business under the Capital Markets Department of Axis Bank Limited. During his last stint with Axis Bank he was Head of the Global Debt Syndication Business (International & Domestic). He has been heading Axis Finance Ltd as the MD & CEO for the last three years and has been instrumental in setting up this wholly owned subsidiary NBFC under Axis Bank. To his credit, Axis Finance Limited (AFL) in the span of three years has evolved as one of the fastest growing NBFCs with a balance sheet size of above Rs. 3,000 crores and a prime focus on Wholesale and Retail Lending. AFL under his tenure has secured the Highest Credit Rating (ICRA & India Ratings), exhibited robust operating parameters and is well poised to grow in future years.

Mr. R. V. R. Kaundinya is a Graduate in Agriculture from AP Agricultural University, Hyderabad. He holds an MBA degree with specialization in Agriculture from the Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad. Mr. Kaundinya has worked extensively in the areas of productivity enhancement of farmers and improvement of their profitability through the use of high quality inputs. He has also worked on the development of seed production areas, contract farming systems in the seed / crop production areas in India and abroad. He was involved in a project that was aimed at the elimination of child labour in cotton seed farmers' fields in Andhra Pradesh. Mr. Kaundinya was a member of the Dr. Swaminathan Committee to develop the Biotech Policy in India. He held various leadership positions in industry associations like the Indian Crop Protection Association, Association of Seed Industry and Crop Biotech Association. He has developed case studies and taught Agricultural Marketing and Rural Development classes at the Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad.

Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi is an Economics (Honours) graduate from Delhi University and a post graduate in Business Administration from Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad (1971-73). She has been associated with the financial markets for over 41 years with wide experience, including assessment of viability of projects at ICICI Ltd., and managing of IPOs and FOOs during her tenures with Standard Chartered Bank, Investment Banking Division and J M financial & Investment Consultancy Services Ltd. She has also been instrumental in setting up a dedicated centre for financial analysis of companies rated by CRISIL in her capacity as CEO of Global Data Services of India, erstwhile subsidiary of CRISIL Ratings Ltd. She is currently the Principal Partner at INNOVEN Business Consultancy. Mrs. Dubhashi is on the boards of several well-known companies as an Independent Director.

Mr. Cyril Anand Madireddi holds a Bachelor's degree in Commerce, and a Master's Degree in Business Administration. He brings with him more than 25 years of experience in the banking industry. He joined Axis Bank in April 1995. In the last 20 years, he has held several roles in various departments of the Bank, like Branch banking, Corporate and International banking. Cyril's last role was CEO for Axis Bank UK Limited, an International subsidiary of Axis Bank. He has since moved back to India and is currently the Chief Risk Officer for the Bank

Mr. K.N. Prithviraj is a first rank holder in M.A. (Economics) from Madras University and a Research Fellow, Department of Economics, Madras University. At present, he is the Chairman of Can Fin Homes Ltd. He is also the Administrator of the Specified Undertaking of the Unit Trust of India (SUUTI). He has more than 38 years of experience in the banking industry: Chairman and MD for Oriental Bank of Commerce; Executive Director, United Bank of India; General Manager, Punjab National Bank Corporate Credit & Human Resource Department; General Manager, Punjab National Bank - Western Zone. He was a Government Nominee Director for Oriental Insurance Company for two years.

Mr. Jairam Sridharan is a Bachelor of Technology in Chemical Engineering from IIT Delhi and Post Graduate Diploma in Management from IIM Calcutta. He is currently the Group Executive and Chief Financial Officer at Axis Bank and handles Finance, Strategy & Business Intelligence functions. He has nearly two decades of experience in the Banking & Financial Services Industry. He joined Axis Bank in June 2010 from Capital One Financial, a consumer bank based in Richmond, VA (USA). He has earlier worked with ICICI Bank in their initial foray into Retail Lending businesses.

Details of the current directors of the Company as on March 15, 2018:

NAME, DESIGNATION AND DIN	AGE	ADDRESS	DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY SINCE	DETAILS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP
Mr. Srinivasan Varadrajan Designation –	52 Years	1301-B, Chaitanya Towers, Appa Saheb Marathe Marg,	October 20, 2012	Axis Bank LimitedAxis Trustee Services LimitedAxis Capital Limited

NAME, DESIGNATION AND DIN	AGE	ADDRESS	DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY SINCE		DETAILS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP
Director (Chairman) DIN- 00033882		Prabha Devi, Mumbai – 400 025			Axis Private Equity Limited A.Treds Limited
Mr. Bipin Saraf Designation -MD & CEO DIN- 06416744	45 Years	Flat No. 42, 4th Floor, Meherdad Building, 64 Cuffe Parade, Mumbai – 400 005	October 20, 2012	-	Nil.
Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi Designation — Director (Independent) DIN- 00036846	65 Years	B 29, Gate 3, Abhimanshree Society, NCL Pashan Road, Pune 411 008	February 26, 2015	-	Tube Investments of India Ltd. Majesco Limited Majesco Software & Solutions India (P) Limited Pudumjee Paper Products Ltd Pudumjee Papers Pvt Ltd JM Financial Properties & Holdings Ltd Recommender Labs Pvt Ltd CR Retail Malls (India) Limited
Mr. V.R. Kaundinya Designation – Director (Independent) DIN-00043067	60 Years	Flat No. 146, Srila Heights, East Marredpally, Secunderabad - 500026	February 26, 2015	- I - / - / / / / / / / -	Unicorn Seeds Private Limited Advanta Seeds Limited Tilvila Horticulture Farms Private Limited Tilvila Agri Solutions Pvt Ltd. Syngenta India Ltd. Bruhat Energy Solutions and Technologies Pvt Limited Capaleph Advisors India Private Limited Agrirain Agro Industries India Private Limited Vasudhaika Software Solutions Private Limited
Mr. Cyril Anand Madireddi Designation – Director DIN - 07489389	52 Years	Flat No. 701, Vidhata Building, Nav Chitrakoot, Apt 468, Opp.Gabann, a Khar(W), Mumbai- 400052	April 12, 2016	- 1	Nil.
Mr. K.N. Prithviraj Designation – Director (Independent) DIN - 00115317	69 Years	Flat No S/3 Zara Apts, 265, Dr Srinivasan road, BEML Layout III Stage R.R. Nagar, Bangalore 560098	July 4, 2016	-	Can Fin Homes Ltd. PNB Investment Services Ltd. Brickwork Ratings India Pvt. Ltd. IL & FS Infra Asset Management Ltd. National Financial Holdings Company Ltd. Specified undertakings of UTI (SUUTI) (Govt. Body)- Non Corporate UTI Infrastructure and Services Ltd.

NAME, DESIGNATION AND DIN	AGE	ADDRESS	DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY SINCE		DETAILS OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIP
				- -	(Subsidiary of SUUTI) Dwarikesh Sugar Industries Ltd. Levana Consultants Private Limited
Mr. Jairam	43	Flat No 1801, Ashok	October	-	A.Treds Limited
Sridharan Designation — Director DIN - 05165390	Years	Tower-B Dr. Babasaheb Ambedkar Marg, Parel Mumbai 400012	13, 2017	-	Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited

None of the current directors of the company is appearing in the RBI defaulter list and/or ECGC default list.

3. MANAGEMENT'S PERCEPTION OF RISK FACTORS

Every business carries inherent risks and uncertainties that can affect financial conditions, results of operations and prospects. Investors should carefully consider all the information in this Shelf Disclosure Document, including the risks and uncertainties described below, as well as the financial statements contained in this Shelf Disclosure Document, before making an investment in the Debentures. The Company believes that the following risk factors may affect its ability to fulfil its obligations under the Debentures issued under the Debenture Documents. All of these factors are contingencies which may or may not occur and the Company is not in a position to express a view on the likelihood of any such contingency occurring.

The financial and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable, have been disclosed in the risk factors mentioned below. However, there are certain risk factors where such implications are not quantifiable and hence any quantification of the underlying risks has not been disclosed in such risk factors. You should not invest in the Issue unless you are prepared to accept the risk of losing all or part of your investment, and you should consult your own tax, financial and legal advisors about the particular consequences of an investment in the Debentures. Unless otherwise stated, our financial information used in this section is derived from our audited unconsolidated financial information, prepared in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in India.

Risks relating to the Issue:

The following are some of the risks envisaged by the Company's management. Investors should consider the same carefully for evaluating the Issuer and its business before making any investment decision. Unless the context requires otherwise, the risk factors described below apply to the Issuer only. If any one of the risks occur, the Company's business, financial conditions and results of operations could suffer and therefore the value of the Issuer's securities could decline.

The Company believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks inherent in investing in the Debentures issued under this Offer Letter, but the inability of the Issuer, as the case may be, to pay necessary amounts, on or in connection with any Debentures may occur for other reasons and the Issuer does not represent that the statements below regarding the risks of holding any Debentures are exhaustive. Investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Offer Letter and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

Risks relating to the Company

1. Interest Rate Risk

The Company's business is largely dependent on interest income from its operations. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk principally as a result of lending to customers at interest rates and in amounts and for periods, which may differ from its funding sources (institutional / bank borrowings and debt offerings). The Company seeks to match its interest rate positions to minimize interest rate risk. Despite these efforts, there can be no assurance that significant interest rate movements will not have an effect on its results of operations. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond its control, including the monetary policies of the RBI, deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and international economic and political conditions, inflation and other factors. Due to these factors interest rates in India have historically experienced a relatively high degree of volatility. Nevertheless, the endeavor of the Company will be to keep the interest rate risk at minimum levels by proactively synchronizing resource securing and lending activities on an ongoing basis.

2. Access to Capital Markets and Commercial Borrowings

The Company's growth will depend on its continued ability to access funds at competitive rates. With the growth of its business, the Company is increasingly reliant on funding from the debt capital markets and commercial borrowings. The market for such funds is competitive and its ability to obtain funds at competitive rates will depend on various factors, including its ability to maintain its credit ratings. While its borrowing costs have been competitive in the past due to its credit rating and the quality of its asset portfolio, if the Company is unable to access funds at an effective cost that is comparable to or lower than its competitors, the Company may not be able to offer competitive interest rates for its loans. This may adversely impact its business and its future financial performance. The value of its collateral may decrease or the Company may experience delays in enforcing its collateral when its customers default on their obligations, which may result in failure to recover the expected value of collateral and adversely affect its financial performance.

The developments in the international markets affect the Indian economy including the financial liquidity position. Our Company is exposed to the risk of liquidity in the financial markets. Changes in economic and financial conditions could make it difficult for the Company to access funds at competitive rates. Being an NBFC, we also face certain restrictions to raise money from international markets which are relatively cheaper sources of money and this further constrains our ability to raise cheaper funds.

3. Failure to recover the expected value of collateral when borrowers default on their obligations to Company may adversely affect its financial performance.

The Company cannot guarantee that it will be able to realize the full value of its collateral, due to, among other things, defects in the perfection of collateral, delays on its part in taking immediate action in bankruptcy foreclosure proceedings, stock market downturns, claims of other lenders, legal or judicial restraint and fraudulent transfers by borrowers. In the event a specialized regulatory agency gains jurisdiction over the borrower, creditor actions can be further delayed. In addition, to put in place an institutional mechanism for the timely and transparent restructuring of corporate debt, the RBI has devised a corporate debt restructuring system. Any failure to recover the expected value of collateral security could expose the Company to a potential loss. Apart from the RBI guidelines, the Company may be a part of a syndicate of lenders, the majority of whom elect to pursue a different course of action than the Company would have chosen. Any such unexpected loss could adversely affect business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

4. Asset-Liability mismatches in the short term, which could affect company's liquidity position.

The difference between the value of assets and liabilities maturing in any time period category provides the measure to which we are exposed to the liquidity risk. As is typical for several NBFCs, a portion of our funding requirements is met through short-term funding sources, i.e. working capital demand loans, cash credit, short term loans and commercial papers. However, some portion of our assets has medium or long-term maturities. As the Company grows its business, the proportion of medium and long-term assets in the portfolio is expected to grow. In the event that the existing and committed credit facilities are withdrawn or are not available to the Company, funding mismatches may be created and it could have an adverse effect on our business and our future financial performance.

5. Our inability to control the number and value of NPAs in our portfolio could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

The Company's inability to control or reduce the number and value of its NPAs may lead to deterioration of the quality of its loan portfolio and may severely impact its business. While the Company's total provisioning against the NPAs at present may be adequate to cover all the identified losses in our loan portfolio, there may not be any assurance that in future the provisioning, though compliant with regulatory requirements, will be sufficient to cover all anticipated losses. Further, the Company may not be able to meet its recovery targets set for the particular financial year due to the intense competition witnessed at both global and domestic levels. In such circumstances, there could be an increase in the number and value of NPAs which can impact the Company.

6. System failures, infrastructure bottlenecks and security breaches in computer systems may adversely affect our business.

Our businesses are highly dependent on our ability to process, on a daily basis, a large number of increasingly complex transactions. Our financial, accounting or other data processing systems may fail to operate adequately or become disabled as a result of events that are wholly or partially beyond our control, including a disruption of electrical or communications services. If any of these systems do not operate properly or are disabled or if there are other shortcomings or failures in our internal processes or systems, it could affect our operations or result in financial loss, disruption of our businesses, regulatory intervention or damage to our reputation. In addition, our ability to conduct business may be adversely impacted by a disruption in the infrastructure that supports our businesses and the localities in which we are located.

Our operations also rely on the secure processing, storage and transmission of confidential and other information in our computer systems and networks. Our computer systems, software and networks may be vulnerable to unauthorized access, computer viruses or other malicious code and other events that could compromise data integrity and security.

7. Our indebtedness and restrictive covenants imposed by our financing agreements could restrict our ability to conduct our business and operations.

Our financing agreements require us to maintain certain security margins. Should we breach any financial or other covenants contained in any of our financing agreements, we may be required to immediately repay our borrowings either in whole or in part, together with any related costs. Under the terms of some of the credit lines, the Company is required to obtain the prior written consent of the concerned lender prior to the Company entering into any scheme of expansion, merger, amalgamation, compromise or reconstruction or selling, leasing, transferring all or a substantial portion of its fixed and other assets; making any change in ownership or control or constitution of our Company, or in the shareholding or management or majority of directors, or in the nature

of business of our Company; or making amendments in the Company's MoA and Articles. This may restrict/ delay some of the actions / initiatives that our Company may like to take from time to time.

8. We may not get the benefits of being Axis Group Company in case of any change of control.

In case of any change of control due to any event such as transfer of shares by our Promoter, preferential allotment to any investor, our ability to leverage the "AXIS" brand may get affected and the benefits of being an AXIS company including leveraging of business from other AXIS companies may not be available to us and consequently, could adversely impact our business operations and profitability.

9. We are exposed to various operational risks including the risk of fraud and other misconduct by employees or outsiders.

Like other financial intermediaries, we are also exposed to various operational risks which include the risk of fraud or misconduct by our employees or even an outsider, unauthorized transactions by employees or third parties, misreporting and non-compliance of various statutory and legal requirements and operational errors. It may not be always possible to deter employees from the misconduct or the precautions we take to detect and prevent these activities may not be effective in all cases. Any such instances of employee misconduct or fraud, the improper use or disclosure of confidential information, could result in regulatory and legal proceedings and may harm our reputation and also our operations.

10. We may not be able to attract or retain talented professionals required for our business.

The complexity of our business operations requires highly skilled and experienced manpower. Such highly skilled personnel give us a competitive edge. Further the successful implementation of our growth plans would largely depend on the availability of such skilled manpower and our ability to attract such qualified manpower. We may lose many business opportunities and our business would suffer if such required manpower is not available on time. Though we have appropriate human resource policies in place, we may face the risk of losing our key management personnel due to reasons beyond our control and we may not be able to replace them in a satisfactory and timely manner which may adversely affect our business and our future financial performance.

11. The Company faces increasing competition from established banks and NBFCs. The successful implementation of our growth plans depends on our ability to face the competition.

The Company's main competitors are established commercial banks and NBFCs. Over the past few years, the financing area has seen the entry of banks, both nationalized as well as foreign. Banks have access to low cost funds which enables them to enjoy higher margins and / or offer finance at lower rates. NBFCs do not have access to large quantities of low cost deposits, a factor which can render them less competitive. The Company also faces increased competition from new NBFC's foraying into this space and some of which have been quite aggressive in their pricing to garner market share.

12. We may have a high concentration of loans to certain customers or group of customers. If a substantial portion of these loans becomes non-performing, our business and financial performance could be affected.

Our business of lending with or without securities exposes us to the risk of third parties that owe us money. Our loan portfolio and non-performing asset portfolio has, or may in the future, have a high concentration in certain customers or groups of customers. These parties may default on their obligations to us due to bankruptcy, lack of liquidity, operational failure, breach of contract, government or other regulatory intervention and other reasons including inability to adapt to changes in the macro business environment. Historically, borrowers or borrower groups have been adversely affected by economic conditions in varying degrees. Credit losses due to

financial difficulties of these borrower's / borrower groups in the future could adversely affect our business and our financial performance.

Risks Relating to the Utilization of Issue Proceeds

13. Our management will have significant flexibility in applying proceeds of the Issue.

The funds raised through this Issue, after meeting the expenditures of and related to the Issue, will be used for our various activities, including but not restricted to, lending and investments, to repay our existing loans, our business operations including capital expenditure and working capital requirements.

The Main Objects clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company permits the Company to undertake the activities for which the funds are being raised through the present Issue and also the activities which the Company has been carrying on till date.

The management of the Company, in accordance with the policies formulated by it from time to time, will have flexibility in deploying the proceeds received from the Issue. Pending utilization of the proceeds out of the Issue for the purposes described above, the Company intends to temporarily invest funds in high quality interest bearing liquid instruments including money market mutual funds, deposits with banks or temporarily deploy the funds in investment grade interest bearing securities as may be approved by the Board.

Further as per the provisions of the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, we are not required to appoint a monitoring agency and therefore no monitoring agency has been appointed for this Issue.

Risks Relating to the Debentures

14. Changes in general interest rates in the economy may affect the price of our Debentures.

All securities where a fixed rate of interest is offered, such as our Debentures, are subject to price risk. The price of such securities will vary inversely with changes in prevailing interest rates, i.e. when interest rates rise, prices of fixed income securities fall and when interest rates drop, the prices increase. The extent of fall or rise in the prices is a function of the existing coupon, days to maturity and the increase or decrease in the level of prevailing interest rates. Increased rates of interest, which frequently accompany inflation and /or a growing economy, are likely to have a negative effect on the price of our Debentures.

15. We are not required to maintain any Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) for the Debentures issued under this Offer Letter.

No Debenture Redemption Reserve is being created for the issue of NCDs in pursuance of this Document since creation of Debenture Redemption Reserve is not required for the proposed issue of Debentures by the Issuer as per Rule 18(7) of the Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules 2014, as they are privately placed debentures issued by a non-banking financial company.

16. Any downgrading in credit rating of our Debentures may affect the value of Debentures and thus our ability to raise further debts.

The Debentures are rated by CRISIL Ratings Limited as CRISIL AAA. The Issuer cannot guarantee that the rating will not be downgraded. Such a downgrade in the above credit rating may lower the value of the NCDs and may also affect the Issuer's ability to raise further debt.

External Risk Factors

17. Our business may be adversely impacted by natural calamities or unfavorable climatic changes.

India, Bangladesh, Pakistan, Indonesia and other Asian countries have experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, floods, droughts and a tsunami in recent years. Some of these countries have also experienced pandemics, including the outbreak of avian flu/swine flu. The extent and severity of these natural disasters and pandemics determines their impact on these economies and in turn affects the financial services sector of which our Company is a part. Prolonged spells of abnormal rainfall and other natural calamities could have an adverse impact on the economies in which we have operations, which could adversely affect our business and the price of our Debentures.

18. We are subject to regulatory and legal risk which may adversely affect our business.

The operations of an NBFC are subject to regulations framed by the RBI and other authorities including regulations relating to foreign investment in India. The Company is required to maintain a CRAR of 15% from March 31, 2011, besides complying with other prudential norms.

We are also subject to changes in Indian laws, regulations and accounting principles. There can be no assurance that the laws governing the Indian financial services sector will not change in the future or that such changes or the interpretation or enforcement of existing and future laws and rules by governmental and regulatory authorities will not affect our business and future financial performance.

19. Any downgrading of India's sovereign rating by an international rating agency (ies) may affect our business and our liquidity to a great extent.

Any adverse revision to India's credit rating for domestic and international debt by international rating agencies may adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing and the interest rates and other commercial terms at which such additional financing is available. This could have an adverse effect on our financial performance and our ability to obtain financing to fund our growth on favourable terms, or at all.

20. Civil unrest, terrorist attacks and war could affect our business.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence, war or conflicts, particularly those involving India, as well as the United States of America, the United Kingdom, Singapore and the European Union, may adversely affect Indian and global financial markets. Such acts may negatively impact business sentiment, which could adversely affect our business and profitability. India has from time to time experienced, and continues to experience, social and civil unrest, terrorist attacks and hostilities with neighboring countries. Also, some of India's neighboring countries have experienced, or are currently experiencing internal unrest. This, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on the market for securities including the Debentures. The consequences of any armed conflicts are unpredictable, and we may not be able to foresee events that could have an adverse effect on our business and the price and yield of the Debentures.

4. DETAILS OF DEFAULT

Statutory Dues	Nil
Debentures and Interests thereon	Nil
Deposits and interest thereon	Nil
Loan from any bank or financial institution and interest thereon	Nil

5. PARTICULARS OF THE OFFER

a.	Date of passing of board resolution	11 th April, 2017 (Extract of the certified copy of the resolution has been annexed in Annexure F)
b.	Date of passing of resolution in the general meeting, authorizing the offer of securities	13 th July, 2017 (Extract of the certified copy of the resolution has been annexed in Annexure G)
C.	Kinds of securities offered (i.e. whether share or debenture) and class of security	Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures
d.	Price at which the security is being offered including the premium, if any, alongwith justification of the price	Face Value: INR 10,00,000 Issue Price: Please refer to Annexure A (<i>Terms and Conditions of this Issue</i>) of this Offer Letter Justification: Premium: Not Applicable
e.	Name and address of the valuer who performed valuation of the security offered	Not Applicable
f.	Amount which the company intends to raise by way of securities	INR 200,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred crores)
g.	Terms of raising of securities: Duration, if applicable, Rate of dividend or rate of interest, mode of payment and repayment	Please refer to Annexure A (<i>Terms and Conditions of this Issue</i>) of this Offer Letter
h.	Proposed time schedule for which the offer letter is valid	Issue Opening Date: 28th March ,2018 Issue Closing Date: 28th March ,2018
i.	Purposes and objects of the offer	The object of the Issue is to augment long-term resources of the Company in its line of business, to repay the existing loans and business operations including for capital expenditure and working capital requirements.
j.	Contribution being made by the promoters or directors either as part of the offer or separately in furtherance of such objects	NIL
k.	Principle terms of assets charged as security, if applicable	In terms of the Debenture Trust Deed dated November 29, 2017, the Company has created the following charge over its assets – - Equitable mortgage in favour of the Debenture Trustee out of the parcel of vacant land measuring an extent of 6,262 square feet, in the approved layout bearing No. 29 of 2009, Area, comprised in Survey No. 1313/2 Part of Sriperumbudur Village, Sriperumbudur Taluk,

Kancheepuram District, Lake View Garden Layout, (Now known as Town and Country) and a commercial premises admeasuring an extent of 142 Square feet (Super Built up Area) bearing No. Shop II Plot together with 130 Square feet of undivided share of the aforementioned underlying lands situated at Kancheepuram District more particularly described in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Hypothecation in favour of the Debenture Trustees (acting for and on behalf of and for the benefit of Debenture holders), all its present and future rights, title, interests, benefits, advantages, permits, licenses and remedies in under or arising out of all accounts receivables, book debts and other debts, proceeds, revenues and monetary claims, loans advances or credit of whatsoever nature, howsoever owing, whatsoever and wheresoever situate, both present and future, due, owing or accruing to the Issuer in the course of the Issuer's trade or business; and benefits rights and remedies of the Issuer under or arising from all guarantees, bills of exchange, promissory notes and other securities with respect to the receivables, all the contracts of sale, all the contract rights, all the moneys and all claims for moneys payable or to become payable, including without limitation damages, arising out of the foregoing, the benefit of any securities for the time being held by the Issuer in respect of any of the foregoing; and all its present and future rights, title, interest, benefits, advantages, permits, licenses and remedies in under or arising out of all the goods.

The charge created on the Secured Assets shall rank pari passu with the present and future lenders and debenture holders of the Company. The Company reserves the right to create further pari passu charge or encumbrances on the Secured Assets without seeking the consent of the Debenture Trustee or the Debenture Holders so long as the security cover of 1.00 times of the Secured Obligations is maintained.

6. DISCLOSURES WITH REGARD TO INTEREST OF DIRECTORS, LITIGATION ETC.

i.	Any financial or other material interest of the directors, promoters or key managerial personnel in the offer and the effect of such interest in so far as it is different from the interests of other persons	NIL
ii.	Details of any litigation or legal action pending or taken by any Ministry or Department of the Government or a statutory authority against any promoter of the offeree company during the last three years immediately preceding the year of the circulation of the offer letter and any direction issued by such Ministry or Department or statutory authority upon conclusion of such litigation or legal action shall be disclosed.	NIL
iii.	Remuneration of directors (during the current year and last three financial years)	Please refer to Annexure B (Remuneration of the Directors during the Current Year and the

		Last Three Financial Years) of this Offer Letter.
iv.	Related party transactions entered during the last three financial years immediately preceding the year of circulation of offer letter including with regard to loans made or, guarantees given or securities provided	Please refer to Annexure C (Related Party Transactions entered during the Last Three Financial Years) of this Offer Letter.
v.	Summary of reservations or qualifications or adverse remarks of auditors in the last five financial years immediately preceding the year of circulation of offer letter and of their impact on the financial statements and financial position of the company and the corrective steps taken and proposed to be taken by the company for each of the said reservations or qualifications or adverse remark	NIL
vi.	Details of any inquiry, inspections or investigations initiated or conducted under the Act or any previous company law in the last three years immediately preceding the year of circulation of offer letter in the case of company and all of its subsidiaries. Also, if there were any prosecutions filed (whether pending or not) fines imposed, compounding of offences in the last three years immediately preceding the year of the offer letter and if so, section-wise details thereof for the company and all of its subsidiaries	NIL
vii.	Details of acts of material frauds committed against the company in the last three years, if any, and if so, the action taken by the company	NIL

7. FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(a) Capital structure of the Company

Details of Share Capital as on February 28, 2018:

Share Capital	Rs. 480,75,00,000
Authorized Share Capital	Rs. 10,00,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share	Rs. 480,75,00,000

(ii) Paid up Capital

Particulars	Amount (Rs)
a. After the offer	480,75,00,000
b. After conversion of convertible instruments, if applicable	NA
c. Share premium account (before and after the offer)	NA

(iii) Equity Share Capital history of the Company as on February 28, 2018 and last 5 Financial Years

Date of	No of Equity	Face Value	Issue Price	Consideration	Nature of	Cumulative	
Allotment	Shares	(Rs)	(Rs)	(Cash, other than cash etc)	Allotment	No of equity shares	Equity Share Capital (Rs)
28.02.2016	6,25,00,000	10	20	Cash	Rights Issue	48,07,50,000	480,75,00,000
27.06.2016	5,00,00,000	10	20	Cash	Rights Issue	41,82,50,000	418,25,00,000
17.11.2015	5,00,00,000	10	20	Cash	Rights Issue	36,82,50,000	368,25,00,000
01.01.2015	6,25,00,000	10	16	Cash	Rights Issue	31,82,50,000	318,25,00,000
27.05.2013	25,00,00,000	10	10	Cash	Preferential Allotment	25,57,50,000	255,75,00,000
08.02.2013	20,00,000	10	200	Cash	Conversion of Preference Shares into Equity Shares	57,50,000	5,75,00,000

(b) Profits of the Company, before and after making provisions for tax, for the three financial years immediately preceding the date of circulation of offer document:

(in crores)

Particulars	H1 FY 18	FY 17	FY 16	FY 15
Profit before provision for tax	155.84	253.31	169.90	117.39
Less: provision for tax	54.60	88.04	59.13	39.23
Profit after provision for tax	101.24	165.27	110.77	78.16

(c) Dividends declared by the Company in respect of the said three financial years; interest coverage ratio for last three years (cash profit after tax plus interest paid/interest paid)

Particulars	H1 FY 18	FY 17	FY 16	FY 15
Dividend Paid in Rs. Crs	-	94.94	62.60	Nil
Interest Coverage Ratio	1.93	1.86	1.67	1.88

(c) Summary of financial position of the Company as in the three audited balance sheets immediately preceding the date of circulation of Offer Letter

Please refer to **Annexure D** (Summary of Financial Position of the Company during the Last Three Financial Years) of this Offer Letter.

(d) Audited Cash Flow Statements for the three years immediately preceding the date of circulation of the offer letter

Please refer to **Annexure E** (Audited Cash Flow Statements for the Last Three Financial Years) of this Offer Letter.

(e) Any change in accounting policies during the last three years and their effect on the profits and the reserves of the Company: No

8. ILLUSTRATION OF CASH FLOWS FROM THE DEBENTURES

Series 04/2017-18/Option B, (Re-Issue 1)

Cash Flow	Date	No. of days in	Amount (in Rs.)
		coupon period	
Premium	10-05-2021, Monday	1139	2,90,543
Principal	10-05-2021, Monday		10,00,000
		Total	12,90,543

Series 05/2017-18/Option B, (Re-Issue 2)

Cash Flow	Date	No. of days in coupon period	Amount (in Rs.)
Premium	12-04-2021, Monday	1111	2,82,014
Principal	12-04-2021, Monday		10,00,000
		Total	12,82,014

Series 05/2017-18/Option A, (Re-Issue 2)

Cash Flow	Date	No. of days in coupon period	Amount (in Rs.)
Premium	27-04-2021, Tuesday	1126	2,86,114
Principal	27-04-2021, Tuesday		10,00,000
		Total	12,86,114

DECLARATION

We, the directors of the Company certify that:

- a. the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder;
- b. the compliance with the Act and the rules does not imply that payment of dividend or interest or repayment of debentures, if applicable, is guaranteed by the Central Government; and
- c. the monies received under the offer shall be used only for the purposes and objects indicated in the Offer letter.

I am authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution dated April 11, 2017 to sign this form and declare that all the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this form and matters incidental thereto have been complied with. Whatever is stated in this form and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no information material to the subject matter of this form has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records maintained by the promoters subscribing to the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association.

It is further declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly and legibly attached to this form.

For Axis Finance Limited

Bipin Saraf

Managing Director & CEO

Place: Mumbai

Date: 27th March 2018

Attachments: -

Annexure A- Terms and Conditions of the Issue

Annexure B- Remuneration to Directors

Annexure C- Related Party Transactions

Annexure D- Summary of Financial Position of the Company during the Last Three Financial Years

Annexure E— Audited Cash Flow Statements for the last 3 (three) years immediately preceding the date of this Offer Letter.

Annexure F– Certified copy of the Board resolution of the Company

Annexure G- Certified copy of the shareholders' resolution of the Company

Annexure H- Credit Rating Letter

ANNEXURE A TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE ISSUE

Issuer	Axis Finance Ltd. ("AFL"	or the "Issuer")		
Type of Instrument	Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures			
Nature of Instrument	Secured Redeemable No	n-Convertible Debenture	es	
Seniority	Senior			
Mode of Issue	Private Placement			
Eligible Investors	The state of the s	Only the persons who are specifically addressed through a communication are eligible to apply for the Debentures. No other person can apply.		
Listing	The NCDs would be liste of the BSE Ltd (BSE)	d on the Wholesale Deb	t Market Segment (WDM)	
Rating	CRISIL AAA			
Option to retain oversubscriptions	N.A			
Objects of the Issue	in its line of business, to	The object of the Issue is to augment long-term resources of the Company in its line of business, to repay our existing loans and business operations including for capital expenditure and working capital requirements.		
	The expenses of the present issue would also be met from the proceeds of the Issue. The Main Object Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company enables it to undertake the activities for which the funds are being raised through the present issue and also the activities, which the Company has been carrying on till date. Interim Use of Proceeds The management of the Company, in accordance			
	with the policies formulated by it from time to time, will have flexibility in deploying the proceeds received from the Issue. Pending utilization of the proceeds out of the Issue for the purposes described above, the Company intends to temporarily invest funds in high quality interest bearing liquid instruments including money market mutual funds, deposits with banks or temporarily deploy the funds in investment grade interest bearing securities.			
Utilization of Issue	The proceeds of the issue will be utilized for general corporate purposes			
Proceeds	including augmenting long-term financing requirements of the company in its business and also for other purposes as may be decided by our Board and as permissible under applicable laws and government policies.			
Series	Series 04/2017- 18/Option B, ISIN - INE891K07333	Series 05/2017- 18/Option B, ISIN - INE891K07366	Series 05/2017- 18/Option A, ISIN - INE891K07358	
Option	Re Issue 1	Re Issue 2	Re Issue 2	
Security Name	Zero% AFL, 10 th May 2021	Zero% AFL, 12 th April 2021	Zero% AFL, 27 th April 2021	
Issue Amount	Rs.70.00 crores	Rs.50.00 crores	Rs.80.00 crores	
Coupon Rate	ZERO %	ZERO%	ZERO%	
YTM (on XIRR basis)	8.12% XIRR	8.12% XIRR	8.12% XIRR	
Step Up/Step Down Coupon Rate	N. A	N. A	N. A	

Coupon payment dates	Coupon Payment Frequency	N. A	N. A	N. A
Coupon Type				
Coupon Reset Process (including rates, spread, effective date, interest rate cap and floor etc). Put / Call Option N.A Actual/Actual Actual/Actual Actual/Actual Actual/Actual Actual/Actual Actual/Actual Actual/Actual Actual/Actual Actual/Actual Tenor 1139 days 1111 days 1126 days Redemption Date Redemption Date Redemption Premium Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,10,854 each Rs. 10,10,838 each Rs. 10,10,854 each Rs. 10,10,838 each Rs. 10,10,854 each Rs. 10,10,000 e				
spread, effective date, interest rate cap and floor etc). Put / Call Option N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A Day Count Basis Actual/Actual Actual/Actual Tenor 1139 days 1111 days 1126 days Redemption Date 10 th May 2021 Redemption Amount Redemption Premium Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,10,834 each Rs. 28,20,14 each Rs. 10,10,838 each Rs. 28,20,14 each Rs. 10,10,838 each Rs. 28,20,14 each Rs. 10,10,838 each Rs. 10,10,900 each Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,10,838 each Rs. 10,10,900 each Rs. 10,10,000 each Rs. 10,10,000 each Rs. 10,10,000 each Rs. 10,10,000 each R				
and floor etc). Put / Call Option N.A N.A N.A Day Count Basis Actual/Actual Actual/Actual Actual/Actual Actual/Actual Tenor 1139 days 1111 days 1126 days Redemption Date 10° May 2021 12° April 2021 27° April 2021 Redemption Amount Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	10.7	N. A	I W. A
Put / Call Option Day Count Basis Actual/Actual Actual/Act				
Day Count Basis Actual/Actual Tenor 1139 days 1111 days 1126 days Redemption Date 10th May 2021 Redemption Amount Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,10,000 each Rs. 10,10,0	,	N.Δ	NΔ	NΔ
Tenor 1139 days 1111 days 1126 days Redemption Date 10th May 2021 12th April 2021 27th	•			
Redemption Date Redemption Amount Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,11,503 each Rs. 10,10,834 each Rs. 10,10,838 each Rs. 28,20,14 each Rs. 10,10,838 each Rs. 10,10,836 each Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,00,838 each Rs. 10,00,800 each Rs. 10,00,838 each Rs. 10,00,800 each Rs. 10,10,838 each Rs. 10,10,000 each Rs. 10,10,838 each Rs. 10,10,838 each Rs. 10,10,808 each	•	•	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Redemption Amount Redemption Premium Rs. 2,90,543 each Rs. 2,82,014 each Rs. 2,86,114 Rs. 2,90,543 each Rs. 2,82,014 each Rs. 2,86,114 Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,01,0838 each Rs. 2,82,014 each Rs. 10,0838 each Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,00,500 each Rs. 10,00,600 each Rs. 10,000 each Rs. 10,00,600 each Rs. 10,000 ea			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-
Redemption Premium Rs. 2,90,543 each Rs. 2,82,014 each Rs. 2,86,114	·	•	•	
Issue Price Rs. 10,11,503 each Rs. 10,10,854 each Rs. 10,10,838 each Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,000 each Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,000 each Rs.	•			
Rs. 10,00,000 each Rs. 10,00,000 each Issue Opening Date 28th March 2018 2				1
Issue Opening Date 28th March 2018 28th Ma				
Same Closing Date 28th March 2018 28th Mar				
Pay in Date 28th March 2018 28th March				
Deemed Date of Allotment 28th March 2018 28th And Legal Selection of default amount for the default amount	issue closing bute	20 March 2010	20 March 2010	20 1410112010
Minimum Application and in multiples of	Pay in Date	28 th March 2018	28 th March 2018	28 th March 2018
Debt securities thereafter Default Interest Rate 2% p.a over the coupon rate for the default amount for the duration of default Interest on Application Money Interest on Application Money Interest on application money will be paid to investors at Coupon/YTM from the date of realization of subscription money upto one day prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment. Such interest shall be payable within fifteen business days from the Deemed Date of Allotment. Discount at which security is issued and the effective yield as a result of such discount. Issuance mode of the Instrument Demat only Settlement mode of the Instrument Demat only Settlement mode of the Instrument Depository NSDL/CDSL Business Day Convention If any interest payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai, interest will be payable on the next Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the interest payment date. If any principal payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the principal payment date. Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. Record Date The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date	Deemed Date of Allotment	28 th March 2018	28 th March 2018	28 th March 2018
Default Interest Rate 2% p.a over the coupon rate for the default amount for the duration of default Interest on Application Money Interest on application money will be paid to investors at Coupon/YTM from the date of realization of subscription money upto one day prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment. Such interest shall be payable within fifteen business days from the Deemed Date of Allotment. Discount at which security is issued and the effective yield as a result of such discount. Issuance mode of the Instrument Demat only Settlement mode of the Instrument Depository RTGS/NEFT/Fund Transfer Depository NSDL/CDSL If any interest payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai, interest will be payable on the next Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the interest payment date. If any principal payment date. Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. Record Date 2% p.a over the coupon rate for the default amount for the duration of default Interest on application money will be paid to investors at Coupon/YTM from the Demat Coupon/YTM from the Demat Coupon to be payable within fifteen business days from the Deemed Date of Allotment. N.A N.A N.A RTGS/NEFT/Fund Transfer NSDL/CDSL If any interest payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai. principal payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the principal payment date. Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date	Minimum Application and in multiples of	10 debentures and in m	ultiples of 1 debenture t	hereafter
Interest on Application Money Interest on application money will be paid to investors at Coupon/YTM from the date of realization of subscription money upto one day prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment. Such interest shall be payable within fifteen business days from the Deemed Date of Allotment. Discount at which security is issued and the effective yield as a result of such discount. Issuance mode of the Instrument Demat only Settlement mode of the Instrument Demat only Settlement mode of the Instrument Depository NSDL/CDSL Business Day If any interest payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai, interest will be payable on the next Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the interest payment date. If any principal payment date. Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the principal payment date. Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. Record Date The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date.	Debt securities thereafter			
from the date of realization of subscription money upto one day prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment. Such interest shall be payable within fifteen business days from the Deemed Date of Allotment. Discount at which security is issued and the effective yield as a result of such discount. Issuance mode of the Instrument Trading mode of the Instrument Demat only Settlement mode of the Instrument Depository NSDL/CDSL Business Day Convention If any interest payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai, interest will be payable on the next Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the interest payment date. If any principal payment date. Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. Record Date The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date	Default Interest Rate	2% p.a over the coupon rate for the default amount for the duration of default		
Discount at which security is issued and the effective yield as a result of such discount. Issuance mode of the Instrument Trading mode of the Instrument Demat only Settlement mode of the Instrument Depository RTGS/NEFT/Fund Transfer Depository Business Day If any interest payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai, interest will be payable on the next Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the interest payment date. If any principal payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai. principal will be payable on the previous Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the principal payment date. Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. Record Date The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date	Interest on Application Money	from the date of realization of subscription money upto one day prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment. Such interest shall be payable within fifteen		
Trading mode of the Instrument Settlement mode of the Instrument Depository RTGS/NEFT/Fund Transfer NSDL/CDSL Business Day If any interest payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai, interest will be payable on the next Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the interest payment date. If any principal payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai. principal will be payable on the previous Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the principal payment date. Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. Record Date The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date	the effective yield as a result of such			
Settlement mode of the Instrument Depository Business Day Convention If any interest payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai, interest will be payable on the next Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the interest payment date. If any principal payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai. principal will be payable on the previous Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the principal payment date. Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. Record Date The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date	Issuance mode of the Instrument	Demat only		
Settlement mode of the Instrument Depository Business Day Convention If any interest payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai, interest will be payable on the next Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the interest payment date. If any principal payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai. principal will be payable on the previous Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the principal payment date. Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. Record Date The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Depository Business Day If any interest payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai, interest will be payable on the next Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the interest payment date. If any principal payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai. principal will be payable on the previous Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the principal payment date. Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. Record Date The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date			fer	
Convention be payable on the next Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the interest payment date. If any principal payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai. principal will be payable on the previous Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the principal payment date. Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. Record Date The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date	Depository	NSDL/CDSL		
Convention be payable on the next Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the interest payment date. If any principal payment date is not a Business Day in Mumbai. principal will be payable on the previous Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the principal payment date. Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. Record Date The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date	Business Day			
Mumbai. principal will be payable on the previous Business Day in Mumbai which shall be the principal payment date. Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. Record Date The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date	Convention			
Mumbai which shall be the principal payment date. Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. Record Date The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date				
Business Day means a day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. Record Date The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date				
holiday and on a day when there is RTGS/ NEFT/ ECS clearing facility in Mumbai. Record Date The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date		Mumbai which shall be	the principal payment	date.
Mumbai. Record Date The record date will be 15 days prior to each interest payment / principal repayment date		Business Day means a	day which is not a Satu	urday, Sunday or a public
repayment date		1	hen there is RTGS/ NEI	FT/ ECS clearing facility in
	Record Date	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
	Security		osure document.	

Transaction Documents	Term Sheet
	Rating Letter
	Trustee Consent
	Application Form
Conditions Precedent to Disbursement	N.A
Condition Subsequent to Disbursement	N.A
Events of Default	As per Debenture Trust Deed
Provisions related to Cross Default Clause	N.A
Role and Responsibilities of Debenture	
Trustee	As defined in the debenture trust deed
Governing Law and Jurisdiction	Laws of India subject to jurisdiction of Mumbai courts

ANNEXURE B REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (DURING THE CURRENT YEAR AND LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS)

FY 2016-17	Rs. 1,45,33,609/-
FY 2015-16	Rs. 11,128,033/-
FY 2014-15	Rs. 10,420,407/-

ANNEXURE C RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ENTERED DURING THE LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS

(Refer to Audited Financial statements of Financial Year 2014-15, 2015-16 & 2016-17)

ANNEXURE D Summary of Financial Position of the Company during the Last Three Financial Years

(Rs. In			
For Financial Entities	FY 17	FY 16	FY 15
FOI FINANCIAI ETITITES	(Audited)	(Audited)	(Audited)
Net worth	876.38	725.49	590.17
Total Debt	4266.88	2,626.77	2,873.68
of which –			
- Non Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowing	645.00	655.45	291.53
- Short Term Borrowings	3421.48	1,946.31	2,472.15
- Current Maturities of long Term Borrowings	200.40	25.00	110.00
Net Fixed Assets	2.63	1.85	1.02
Non-Current Assets	2209.48	1148.22	850.97
Cash and Cash Equivalents	5.65	0.15	10.36
Current Investments	280.00	53.23	1250.37
Current Assets	2214.13	2164.60	1358.90
Current Liabilities (including provisions)	20.86	11.88	7.77
Current Liabilities (including provisions)	20.00	11.00	7.77
Assets Under Management	4392.00	3103.62	-
Off Balance Sheet Assets	-	-	-
Interest Income	448.71	325.24	184.25
Interest Expense	291.00	179.21	92.13
Provisioning & Write-offs	4.55	7.18	2.53
Profit before tax	253.31	169.90	117.39
Provision for tax	88.04	59.13	39.23
Profit after tax (PAT)	165.26	110.77	78.16
Gross NPA (%)	-	-	-
Net NPA (%)	-	-	-
Tier I Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)	18.52%	21.43	17.02
Tier II Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)	4.63%	0.38	0.16

Balance Sheet

(Rs. In Crs)

	As at Half Year ended 30	Ac at 21	As at 31	As at 31
Particulars	September 2017	As at 31 March 2017	March 2016	March 2015
	(Unaudited)	(Audited)	(Audited)	(Audited)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			1	
Shareholders' fund			-	
Share capital	418.25	418.25	368.25	318.25
Reserves and surplus	559.37	458.12	357.24	271.92
TOTAL	977.62	876.38	725.49	590.17
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES				
Long term borrowings	959.5	645	620.48	288.4
Other long term liabilities	31.88	67.59	34.98	3.13
Long term provisions	11.77	8.4	3.91	1.86
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES	1003.15	720.99	659.36	293.39
CURRENT LIABILITIES				
Short term borrowings	4059.98	3421.48	1943.56	2469.75
Trade Payable	-		-	-
Other current liabilities	338.77	242.75	29.32	113.73
Short term provisions	14.46	13.96	10.31	4.58
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES	4413.21	3678.2	1983.19	2,588.06
TOTAL LIABILITIES	6393.98	5275.56	3368.04	3,471.62
ASSETS				
Non-current assets				
Fixed assets	3.23	2.63	1.85	1.02
Deferred tax asset	7.35	5.85	4.3	1.82
Non-current investments	100	100	187.95	103.55
Long term loans and advances				
a. Loans	2871.77	2092.71	950.06	742.08
b. Others	16.57	9.76	3.86	2.76
Other non current assets	0	1.16	2.05	0.76
TOTAL	2998.92	2212.11	1150.07	851.99

Particulars	As at Half Year ended 30 September 2017	As at 31 March 2017	As at 31 March 2016	As at 31 March 2015
	(Unaudited)	(Audited)	(Audited)	(Audited)
Current assets				
Current Investments	950.00	280	53.23	1250.37
Trade receivables	1.52	4.23		3.08
Cash and bank balances	0.42	5.65	0.15	10.36
Short-term loans and advances				
a. Loans	2432.70	2199.28	2153.56	1353.24
b. Others	0.75	0.6	0.42	0.35
Other current assets	9.69	14.24	10.63	2.23
TOTAL	3395.07	3063.45	2217.98	2619.63
		_	_	-
TOTAL ASSET	6393.98	5275.56	3368.04	3,471.62

Profit and Loss statement

(Rs. In Crs)

Particulars		For the half year ended	For the year ended	For the year ended	For the year ended
		30-Sep-17	31-Mar-17	31-Mar-16	31-Mar-15
Income					
Revenue from operation		340.86	575.4	372.99	223.7
Other income		0.00	0.003	-	0.56
Total income	(A)	340.86	575.4	372.99	224.26
Expenses					
Employee benefit expense		6.53	12.42	8.07	6.49
Financial costs		168.34	295.11	181.22	93.32
Provisions and write off		4.05	4.55	7.19	2.53
Other expenses		5.77	9.48	6.34	4.49
Depreciation and amortization expense		0.33	0.53	0.28	0.04
Total expenses	(B)	185.02	322.09	203.09	106.87
Profit before tax	(C) = (A)- (B)	155.84	253.31	169.9	117.39
Tax expenses:					
Current tax pertaining to profit/(loss) for the current year		56.09	89.59	61.62	40.02
Current tax pertaining to profit/(loss) for earlier years				-	-
Deferred tax		-1.50	1.55	2.49	-0.79
Profit for the year/period		101.24	165.26	110.77	78.16

ANNEXURE E AUDITED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE THREE IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING YEARS

			(Amt in Rs.)
	For the Period ending Mar 31, 2017	For the Year ended March 31, 2016	For the Year ended March 31, 2015
A. Cash flow from operating			
activities			
Profit before tax	2,53,30,53,837	1,69,89,89,083	1,17,39,17,332
Adjustments for:			
Depreciation	52,51,854	27,61,554	4,09,168
Profit on sale of investment	(43,70,84,301)	-	
Provision against standard assets	4,54,95,277	7,18,52,459	2,52,89,300
Amortization of debenture premium	-	-	(14,30,915)
Interest on debentures	(56,53,345)	-	(56,03,427)
Operating profit before working capital changes	2,14,10,63,323	1,77,36,03,096	1,19,25,81,458
Movement in working capital:	(44, 42, 65, 54, 704)	(2.07.07.70.275)	(4.02.46.47.575)
Decrease/(increase) in long	(11,42,65,51,704)	(2,07,97,79,275)	(1,82,46,17,575)
term loan & advances	/AF 01 07 402\	(0.00.20.02.722)	(0.00.62.51.510)
Decrease/(increase) in short term loan & advances	(45,91,07,483)	(8,00,38,82,732)	(8,08,62,51,519)
Decrease/(increase) in trade	(4,22,92,284)	3,07,75,120	(3,07,24,558)
receivables	(4,22,92,264)	3,07,73,120	(3,07,24,336)
Decrease/(increase) in other	(3,61,15,776)	(8,39,79,137)	65,64,170
current assets	(3,01,13,770)	(0,33,73,137)	05,04,170
Decrease/(increase) in other	89,53,315	(1,28,85,313)	(76,40,605)
non-current assets	,,-	(, =,==,===,	(, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
Increase/(decrease) in short term provisions	3,67,13,633	48,95,016	10,96,384
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities	2,46,04,51,154	(52,56,82,698)	1,15,19,65,694
Increase/(decrease) in Long term provisions	(7,64,677)	10,63,458	
Cash generated from operations	(7,31,76,50,499)	(8,89,58,72,466)	(7,59,70,26,551)
Income tax paid	(96,14,69,755)	(62,71,33,689)	(40,08,78,155)
Net cash flow from operating	(8,27,91,20,254)	(9,52,30,06,155)	(7,99,79,04,706)
activities (A)			
B. Cash flow from investing activities			
Interest received on NCD	56,53,345	-	56,03,427
Purchase of fixed assets	(28,12,927)	(29,27,681)	(21,61,253)
Payment for Intangibles	(1,02,63,273)	(80,67,008)	(80,02,447)
Maturity of bank deposits	-	-	17,00,00,000

Proceeds from sale of investment	10,47,04,71,56,442	2,11,16,20,09,222	74,49,36,39,498
Deposit withdrawal	65,00,000	-	-
Purchase of investment	(10,47,99,83,15,280	(2,00,03,45,89,011	(87,13,33,53,196
)))
Net cash flow from investing	(95,20,81,692)	11,11,64,25,523	(12,47,42,73,971
activities(B))
C. Cash flow from financing activities			
Proceeds from borrowings (net of repayment)	15,02,43,70,496	(1,94,10,88,217)	19,57,30,88,591
Proceed from issue of shares (net of issue expenses)	99,90,00,000	99,90,00,000	99,90,00,000
payment of dividend	(1,14,27,08,601)	(75,34,68,960)	
Net cash flow from financing	14,88,06,61,895	(1,69,55,57,177)	20,57,20,88,591
activities(C)			
Net increase/(decrease) in	5,64,94,59,949	(10,21,37,810)	9,99,09,914
cash and equivalents(A+B+C)		. , , , ,	, , ,
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year	14,57,477	10,35,95,287	36,85,373
Cash and cash equivalents at	5,65,09,17,426	14,57,477	10, 35,95,287
the end of the year	3,03,03,17,420	14,37,477	10, 33,33,207
·			
Note:	Mar 31, 2017	March 31, 2016	March 31, 2015
Cash and cash equivalents			
includes:			
Cash	13,271	970	3,795
Balance with banks	5,65,09,04,154	14,56,507	10,35,91,492

ANNEXURE E - CERTIFIED COPY OF THE BOARD RESOLUTION

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY HELD ON APRIL 11, 2017

"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on July 29, 2016 and in terms of Section 179 (3)(c) and 180(1)(c) and Section 42 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and in accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, subject to approval of the shareholders, if required, and subject to consent of all other concerned statutory and regulatory authorities (if and to the extent necessary); and such other approvals, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed in granting of such approvals, permissions and sanctions by any of the aforesaid authorities which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (the "Board", which term shall be deemed to include any authorized Committee thereof), the Company do raise credit facilities by way of an issue of Secured and / or Unsecured Redeemable Non- Convertible Debentures (the "Debentures") up to an aggregate maximum limit of Rs. 2,200 crores (including premium) in dematerialized form by way of Private Placement (the "Debenture Issue") in one or more series, with or without Green Shoe Option, with a maximum maturity period up to 10 years and on, such other terms and conditions as may be decided by the Board from time to time."

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Mr. Bipin Saraf, Managing Director & CEO or Mr. Amritanshu Mohanty or Mr. Amith Iyer, CFO or Mr. Rajneesh Kumar, Company Secretary, jointly referred to as (the "Authorised Officers"), be and are hereby authorized severally to approve and finalize, sign, execute and deliver documents and do all acts in relation to the Debentures Issue including but not limited to following: (i) approve of and to decide on the other terms and conditions applicable to the Debentures, and to vary any of the above-specified terms; (ii) finalize the appointment of merchant banker(s) to function as Lead Manager(s), Registrars, Debenture Trustees, Bankers to the Debenture Issue and such other intermediaries as may be required to be appointed and terms and conditions of their appointment, succession and their agents; (iii) determine the date of opening and closing of the Debenture Issue and the period for which the aforesaid issue will remain open; (iv) finalize the date of allotment and the allotment of the Debentures to the Subscriber; (v) execute, file and deliver all necessary documents, instruments and do all acts necessary in relation to issuance of the Debentures Issue, (vi) deal with the appropriate regulatory authorities in connection with the Debenture Issue including but not limited to, Registrar of Companies, Reserve Bank of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, (vii) negotiate, execute, file, amend, supplement, issue and deliver all documents, instruments, papers, applications, notices in relation to the Debenture Issue."

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Common Seal of the Company be affixed on the documents related to Debentures, the Shortfall Undertaking and the Non-Disposal Undertaking, and any of the said agreements and documents, and any further documents and agreements that may be required in the presence of any Director, or the Company Secretary of the Company or in the presence of an Authorized Officer in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company who shall sign the same in token thereof."

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Committee of the Board of Directors / Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to allot the NCDs and to do all such acts, deeds and things incidental to the allotment."

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT necessary applications be made with the National Stock Exchange Limited and / or Bombay Stock Exchange Limited or any other Stock Exchange, if required for listing of the instruments and signing of Listing Agreement and other documents as may be required for the purpose and affixing of the common seal on these agreements."

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary, CFO or the Directors be and are hereby authorized severally to file necessary e-forms with Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai and to do all such acts, deeds and things which are necessary to give effect to the above resolution."

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the certified true copy of the above resolution be forwarded to the concerned bank(s)/financial institution(s)/any other authority etc under the signature of the Company Secretary or any of the Director(s) of the Company."

For Axis Finance Limited

Rajneesh Kumar Company Secretary M. No. A 31230 Add: Axis House, Wadia International Centre, P.B. Marg, Worli, Mumbai

AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Regd. Office: Axis House, C-2 Wadia International Centre, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai - 400 025. Tel: 022 - 2425 2525; Fax: 022 - 4325 5732; Email: info@axisfinance.in; Website: www.axisfinance.co.in; CIN: U65921MH1995PLC212675

ANNEXURE F- CERTIFIED COPY OF THE SHAREHOLDERS' RESOLUTION



CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE SPECIAL RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE 22ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF AXIS FINANCE LIMITED HELD ON 13.07.2017.

ITEM NO.: 7

ISSUE OF NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES ON A PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS

"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on July 29, 2016 and pursuant to provisions of Section 42 and 71 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (as may be amended from time to time) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), subject to provisions of any other regulations as may be applicable, consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as "Board") to issue Non-Convertible Debentures both secured and unsecured, including bonds qualifying for Tier II capital (hereinafter referred to as "NCDs") for an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs. 2,800 crores (Rupees Two Thousand Eight Hundred crores) in one or more tranches on a private placement basis to one or more banks/financial institutions, mutual funds, other investing agencies, other eligible investors, etc. upon the terms and condition as may be decided by the Board in its absolute discretion.

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT without prejudice to the generality of the above and for the purpose of giving effect to the above, the Board be and is hereby authorised to determine as to when NCDs are to be issued, the terms of the issue, number of NCDs to be allotted in each tranche, issue price, rate of interest, redemption period, listing on one or more recognised stock exchanges and all such terms as are provided in offering of a like nature as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem fit and to make and accept any modifications in the proposal as may be required by the authorities involved in such issues and to perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things and execute all such deeds and documents as may be necessary and settle any questions or difficulties that may arise in regard to the said issue(s)."

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the approval is hereby accorded to the Board to appoint lead managers, arrangers, underwriters, depositories, registrars, trustees, bankers, lawyers, advisors and all such agencies as may be involved or concerned in such offerings and to remunerate them by way of commission, brokerage, fees or the like (including reimbursement of their actual

AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Regd. Office: Axis House, C-2 Wadia International Centre, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai - 400 025.
Tell: 022 - 2425 2525; Fax: 022 - 4325 5732; Email: info@axisfinance.in; Website: www.axisfinance.co.in; CIN: U65921MH1995PLC212675



expenses) and also to enter into and execute all such arrangements, contracts/agreements, memorandum, documents, etc., with such agencies."

"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to delegate (to the extent permitted by law) all or any of the powers herein conferred to any committee of directors or any executive director or directors or any other officer or officers of the Company to give effect to the aforesaid Resolution.

AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Regd. Office: Axis House, C-2 Wadia International Centre, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai - 400 025.

Tel: 022 - 2425 2525; Fax: 022 - 4325 5732; Email: info@axisfinance.in; Website: www.axisfinance.co.in; CIN: U65921MH1995PLC212675



CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 7

The Company proposes to issue Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) for an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs. 2,800 crores in one or more tranches on private placement basis for its operations. The NCDs may be secured by a mortgage/charge on the movable and/or immovable properties, present and future of the Company as may be decided by the Board of Directors. These NCDs may be offered for subscription to one or more banks/financial institutions, mutual funds, other investing agencies etc. upon the terms and condition as may be decided by the Board in its absolute discretion.

In terms of the provisions of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, a company can make offer or invitation for non-convertible debentures on private placement basis subject to the company passes a previous special resolution only once in a year for all the offers or invitation for such debentures during the year.

Therefore, it is necessary to pass a special resolution to facilitate Company to issue NCDs in one or more tranche. The approval of Members for issuance of NCDs up to Rs. 2,800 crores will be valid for a period of one year from the date of passing of this special resolution and will be considered as a fresh approval and will supersede the earlier approval obtained at the AGM held on July 29, 2016 for issue of NCDs up to Rs. 2000 crores.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives is, in anyway concerned or interested in the Resolution at Item No. 7.

For AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Rinuel Kumar.

RAJNEESH KUMAR Company Secretary Membership No.: A31230 Axis House, Ground Floor,

Wadia International Centre , Worli, Mumbai- 400025

AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Regd. Office: Axis House, C-2 Wadia International Centre, Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai - 400 025.
Tell: 022 - 2425 2525; Fax: 022 - 4325 5732; Email: info@axisfinance.in; Wabsite: www.axisfinance.co.in; CIN: U85921MH1995PLC212675

	27 Mrch, 2018 Private & Confidential For Private Circulation Only
33	

Ratings

CONFIDENTIAL



ENAMF/190815/NCD/050118/2 March 27, 2018

Mr. Amith lyer
Chief Finance Officer
Axis Finance Limited
Axis House, C-2
Wadia International Centre
P B Marg Worli
Mumbai - 400025

Dear Mr. Amith Iyer,

Re: CRISIL Rating on the Rs. 2000 Crore Non-Convertible Debentures of Axis Finance Limited

All ratings assigned by CRISIL are kept under continuous surveillance and review.

Please refer to our rating letter dated February 15, 2018 bearing Ref. no.: ENAMF/190815/NCD/050118/1

Please find in the table below the rating outstanding for your company.

S.No.	Instrument	Rated Amount (Rs. in Crore)	Rating Outstanding
1	Non-Convertible Debentures	2000	CRISIL AAA/Stable

In the event of your company not making the issue within a period of 180 days from the above date, or in the event of any change in the size or structure of your proposed issue, a fresh letter of revalidation from CRISIL will be necessary.

As per our Rating Agreement, CRISIL would disseminate the rating along with outlook through its publications and other media, and keep the rating along with outlook under surveillance for the life of the instrument. CRISIL reserves the right to withdraw or revise the ratings assigned to the captioned instrument at any time, on the basis of new information, or unavailability of information or other circumstances, which CRISIL believes, may have an impact on the rating.

As per the latest SEBI circular (reference number: CIR/IMD/DF/17/2013; dated October 22, 2013) on centralized database for corporate bonds/debentures, you are required to provide international securities identification number (ISIN; along with the reference number and the date of the rating letter) of all bond/debenture issuances made against this rating letter to us. The circular also requires you to share this information with us within 2 days after the allotment of the ISIN. We request you to mail us all the necessary and relevant information at debtissue@crisil.com. This will enable CRISIL to verify and confirm to the depositories, including NSDL and CDSL, the ISIN details of debt rated by us, as required by SEBI. Feel free to contact us for any clarifications you may have at debtissue@crisil.com

Should you require any clarifications, please feel free to get in touch with us.

With warm regards,

Yours sincerely,

Director- CRISIL Ratings

Pridite -

Nivedita Shibu Associate Director - CRISIL Ratings

A CRISIL rating reflects CRISIL's current opinion on the likelihood of timely payment of the obligations under the rated instrument and does not constitute an audit of the rated entity by CRISIL CRISIL ratings are based on information provided by the issuer or obtained by CRISIL from sources it considers reliable. CRISIL does not guarantee the completeness or securacy of the information on which the rating is based. A CRISIL rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell, or hold the rated instrument; it does not comment on the market price or suitability for a particular investor. All CRISIL ratings are under surveillance. Ratings are revised as and when circumstances so warrant. CRISIL is not responsible for any errors and especially states that it has no financial liability whatsoever to the subscribers / users / transmitters / distributors of this product. CRISIL Ratings rating criteria are available without charge to the public on the CRISIL webs site, www.crisit.com. For the latest rating information on any instrument of any company rated by CRISIL, please contact Customer Service Helpdesk et 1800-267-1301.

CRISIL Limited

Corporate Identity Number: L67120MH1987PLC042363